Cape Cod Commission and Metropolitan Planning Organization
Harborview Conference Room « 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630

The meeting was convened at 3:00 p.m., and the Roll Call was recorded as follows:

Minutes

Joint Meeting

February 21, 2019

Town Member Present
Cape Cod Commission
Barnstable Fred Chirigotis Present
Bourne Richard Conron Present
Brewster Elizabeth Taylor Present
Chatham Vacant Vacant
Dennis Richard Roy Absent
Eastham Joy Brookshire Present
Falmouth Charles McCaffrey Absent
Harwich Jacqueline Etsten Present
Mashpee Ernest Virgilio Absent
Orleans Len Short Absent
Provincetown Cheryl Andrews Absent
Sandwich Harold Mitchell Present
Truro Kevin Grunwald Absent
Wellfleet Roger Putnam Present
Yarmouth John McCormack, Jr. Present
County Commissioner Ronald Bergstrom Present
Minority Representative John Harris Present
Native American Rep. David Weeden Absent
Governor's Appointee Michael Maxim Present
Metropolitan Planning Organization Representing
MassDOT Planning Steve Woelfel Present
MassDOT Highway Division District 5 Pam Haznar Present
Barnstable County Commissioner Ronald Bergstrom Present
Cape Cod Commission Harold Mitchell Present
Cape Cod Regional Transit Authority = Tom Guerino Present
Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe Jason Steidling Present
Town of Barnstable Dan Santos Absent
Sub Region A Judith Froman Present
Sub Region B Paul McCormack Present
Sub Region C Alan McClennen Present
Sub Region D Bob Weinstein Present
Federal Highway Administration Jeff McEwen Present

Joint CCC and MPO Meeting

February 21, 2019

Page 1



The Joint Meeting of the Cape Cod Commission and Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) was called to order on
Thursday, February 21,2019 at 3:00 p.m. in the Harborview Conference Room, Barnstable County Complex, 3195 Main
Street, Barnstable, MA. Roll was called, and a quorum was established for the Cape Cod Commission and the MPO.

Steve Buckley of OpenChatham.com announced that he would be recording the meeting.

m MINUTES

The Cape Cod Commission reviewed the minutes of their January 10, 2019 meeting. Roger Putnam moved to approve the
minutes, Elizabeth Taylor seconded the motion and a vote called on the motion passed with 9 votes in favor and two
abstentions (John Harris and Jack McCormack).

The Cape Cod Commission reviewed the minutes of their January 24, 2019 meeting. Roger Putnam moved to approve the
minutes, Elizabeth Taylor seconded the motion and a vote called on the motion passed with 9 votes in favor and two
abstentions (John Harris and Jack McCormack).

m EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Executive Director Kristy Senatori provided the following report:

» Ms. Senatori reminded Cape Cod Commission members that the State Ethics Conflict of Interest Training Certificates are
due by March 227, She said the link to the online training and assessment is in the email sent to Commission members and
asked that they contact Jessica Wielgus, Commission Counsel, for assistance and to answer any questions they may have.

+ The East Wing Conference Room will be wrapping up in the next few weeks and will be available for use once the work
has been completed.

+ The Regional Policy Plan is currently at the printers and once received copies will be distributed to all 15 towns.

* Letters were sent to Cape Cod towns requesting they appoint someone to sit on the Cape Cod and Islands Water Protection
Fund Management Board. Nantucket and the seven Martha’s Vineyard towns are currently not members of the Fund but
have been invited to attend all Fund meetings. The letter sent to towns will be forwarded to Commission members.

+ The Barnstable County Economic Development Council and the Cape Cod Commission hosted a Comprehensive
Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) Update Kick-off meeting as the first step in updating the CEDS on January 31,
2019. The next phase of the update is a series of working group meetings scheduled for next week and the second week of
March. Group members will identify projects or initiatives that operationalize the set of regional priorities identified at the
Kick-off meeting on January 31.

E 2020 CAPE COD REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN DEVELOPMENT

Steven Tupper, Cape Cod Commission Transportation Program Manager, with the use of PowerPoint slides provided an
overview of the Cape Cod Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and said it’s a 20- to 25-year long range plan, it addresses all
modes of transportation, it establishes the regional vision, and was developed and endorsed by the Cape Cod Metropolitan
Planning Organization (MPO). He gave an update on the 2020 RTP development schedule and said preliminary RTP
development began in the summer of 2018 through January 2019; listening sessions were held in February and a survey was
launched at that time; RTP discussions began in February and will continue in March and April; and going forward a Draft
RTP is anticipated for release in May. He said the RTP views Cape Cod as a transportation network, the approximate
funding allocation is over $1.1 billion dollars and the major projects outlined in the RTP were included in the 2016 RTP. Mr.
Tupper said the RTP is based on performance-based planning and programming and includes a vision statement, goals,
objectives, performance targets, and policies and strategies. He said the Draft 2020 RTP goals include safety, environmental
and economic vitality, livability and sustainability, multimodal options/healthy transportation, congestion reduction, system
preservation and freight mobility. He said changing population, demographics and land use; effects of climate change;
technology shifts and funding challenges will change our transportation future. He said we can shape our transportation
future by defining our regional vision, understanding our region and its people, building on our strengths, understanding our
changing world and taking a comprehensive approach. Mr. Tupper said the online snrvev is anen thronich March 6, 2019,
project information and participation in the online survey is available a Mr. Tupper’s
PowerPoint presentation is attached hereto.

m U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS CAPE COD CANAL BRIDGES MAJOR REHABILITATION
EVALUATION STUDY

Craig Martin, Project Manager Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE), with the use of PowerPoint slides said the topics for
discussion today are based on what they heard from the public during their informational sessions. He said the Major
Rehabilitation Evaluation Study is authorized in the Water Resource Development Act (WRDA) of 1992 for all civil works,
the required study covers a 50-year lifecycle, it compares baseline “without project” condition to identified alternatives, and

Joint CCC and MPO Meeting February 21, 2019 Page 2



results in a Major Rehabilitation Evaluation Report (MRER) decision document recommending a long-term plan for both
bridges with a cost of $20 million or more and two years of construction. He said the MRER is a recommended plan for
standard operations and maintenance for a major rehabilitation and/or replacement project that includes a risk and reliability
analysis, defines problems/opportunities, the probability of unsatisfactory performance, provides alternatives to correct
problems, provides cost and economic benefit of alternatives and environmental compliance. He said the MRER will not
result in a final bridge design, initiate construction and guarantee funding and said that will come after with design. He
discussed initial MRER alternatives without project (baseline), major rehabilitation, replacement with current authorization
and replacement including auxiliary lanes. He said other alternatives will be considered as they are identified through public
involvement and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process. Mr. Martin said they had five meetings, 273
individual meeting attendees, 51 oral comments were received during the meetings and 40 additional comments were
provided via letters, cards and the project website. He said the results from the public involvement meetings during
December 4-12, 2018 showed that most people favor replacement of the bridges over rehabilitation of current structures,
support the alternative including auxiliary lanes to improve local travel access; requested an evaluation of alternatives not
initially included in the MRER; emphasis on replacement bridges supporting multimodal connections with appropriate bike
lane widths and pedestrian access; travel safety improvements of current structures such as a center barrier, rumble strips, and
truck speed limitations; and integration of state and federal studies to reduce time to come to a decision. Mr. Martin
explained the NEPA process and said they will conduct a resource agency site visit and a working meeting is planned for
early April. He said the results of both the site visit and working meeting will be incorporated into the document. He
outlined the MRER Study and NEPA timeline and stressed that this is all about relationships and establishing relationships
for gathering information. He said he invites all comments good or bad to work into the document and said he would be very
interested in receiving buildout information from the Cape Cod Commission as well as information on water resource studies,
affordable housing and recreational tourism studies that the Commission may have. Mr. Martin’s PowerPoint presentation is
attached hereto.

Tom Guerino, MPO member, asked if the aquifer in Plymouth and Warcham will be looked at as well. He said when going
through the NEPA process, the process would be different for replacement versus rehabilitation and asked how that would be
presented. Mr. Martin said they would be looking at the aquifer. He said they are collecting more information on
replacement than rehabilitation and said they are trying to get information for both options to make the best analysis.

Ronald Bergstrom asked if there was a way to quantify bad experiences people may have who don’t want to deal with
bridges. Mr. Martin said there are economic ties to traffic relationships for both rehabilitation or replacement. Mr.
Bergstrom said people may feel that there is an ongoing impact and they may want more lanes so more people can come to
the Cape. Mr. Martin said he cannot answer that at this point and said they could look at that.

Joy Brookshire asked if there would be two lanes one in each direction. Mr. Martin said there would be four lanes two lanes
in each direction same as existing. Ms. Brookshire asked if the old bridges would come down. Mr. Martin said the old
bridges would come down with new bridges. Ms. Brookshire asked if they have considered boat traffic in the canal and if
construction would impact boats going through the canal. Mr. Martin said they are evaluating the traffic in the canal for the
height of the bridge and said they do not see any impacts.

Tom Guerino said when putting together the working group they need to consider the more rehabilitation you have ongoing
the more impacts there are to Emergency Management Systems, school buses, police and other scheduling entities and how
going over the bridge will impact these services. He said he hopes someone can address that and he would ask that they
include the local entities. Mr. Martin said they have “other direct impacts” that they will be looking at and said they would
like to get more information on that.

Judith Froman, MPO member, inquired about auxiliary lanes and questioned whether they are required to do pedestrian
sidewalks. Mr. Martin said there would be a pedestrian sidewalk in each direction and said the Army Corps of Engineers
(ACOE) maintains what was built. He said he not sure what will be authorized but replacement will be in-kind.

Jack McCormack asked how long rehabilitation will extend the life of the bridge. Mr. Martin said at least until 2060-2070
and they may need to do more rehab. Mr. McCormack asked if the bridge could support a second deck. Mr. Martin said he
does not believe that is a capability.

E MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION CANAL AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY
Ethan Britland, Project Manager Cape Cod Canal Area Transportation Study Massachusetts Department of Transportation
(MassDOT), said they held a public meeting last week and provided background information on the study. He referred to
PowerPoint slides and said the purpose of MassDOT’s conceptual planning study is to evaluate existing and future
transportation safety and congestion deficiencies in the Cape Cod Canal study area; the study process has involved

Joint CCC and MPO Meeting February 21, 2019 Page 3



coordination with the ACOE on its study of the Bourne and Sagamore bridges; it includes the development and analysis of
multimodal transportation alternatives for roadways, transit and bicycle and pedestrian facilities in order to address identified
deficiencies; and a final report will include the study’s analytical findings, a recommended plan of transportation
improvements, and preliminary cost estimates for these improvements. He said it would not include design or funding the
same as the ACOE. He said the study goal is to improve transportation mobility and accessibility in the Cape Cod Canal
Area and to provide reliable year-round connectivity over the canal and between the Sagamore and Bourne Bridges. He said
the study objectives are to improve multimodal connectivity and mobility levels across the Canal to avoid degrading quality
of life on the Cape; to ensure that cross-canal connectivity does not become a barrier to reliable intra-community travel
within Bourne and Sandwich; and to create a reliable multimodal connection across the Canal to assure public safety in the
event of an emergency evacuation of portions of the Cape and to accommodate first responders trying to reach the Cape. He
showed slides of the study area and explained access on and off Cape Cod; he said the transportation system has two parts:
Part 1: Bridges spanning Cape Cod Canal linking to a Network (the responsibility of the ACOE) and Part 2: “Gateway” roads
and intersections linking to bridges (the responsibility of MassDOT). Mr. Britland said design assumptions focus on year-
round safety and mobility problem locations; design for future (2040) fall weekday p.m. peak period; seek further
improvements for summer Saturday peak as feasible; and replacement bridges to be built adjacent to existing bridges. He
discussed the evaluation of alternatives and said a total of seven cases were evaluated as travel demand model case
improvements and discussed elements of cases analyzed. He discussed traffic analysis fimdings for the Bourne and Sagamore
Bridges for non-summer weekday afternoon hours and summer Saturday morning hours. Mr. Britland said the Draft Study
Recommendations are multimodal for bicycle/pedestrian improvements, improvements to local intersections and “Gateway”
locations. He discussed conceptual cost estimates for Case 3A elements for 2030 and 2040. He said the year 2040 represents
the out year for their analysis and the analysis and conceptual cost estimates are based on that. He said they also developed
an interim year of 2030. He said if you total the costs roughly it would be along the lines of $270 million for the 2030 cost
and $540 million for the 2040 cost which is primarily for inflation. Mr. Britland said the next steps going forward are to
produce a Draft Report which is in production now; they will have a 30-day public comment period on the Draft Study
Report; they will continue to coordinate with the ACOE on their study of the Bourne and Sagamore Bridges and once the
ACOE has decided on it’s long-term plan for the bridges, after their public comment period and after they have finalized their
recommendations, MassDOT will initiate and prioritize the project development process for capital projects recommended in
Case 3A or ultimately what is in the final Cape Cod Canal Transportation Study. Mr. Britland’s PowerPoint presentation is
attached hereto.

Judith Froman inquired about “Complete Streets” on Adams Street in Sagamore and asked if in order to participate in
Complete Streets does the whole town have to participate; she asked if Complete Streets is a study that starts with the entire
town of Bourne. Mr. Britland said Complete Streets is a MassDOT program and there is a participation aspect to it, but
Complete Streets is also just a design term as well; it’s a program and a way to design a road. He said this was just meant for
designing in the context of all modes. He said whether it be a wider shoulder or a natural side path for bikes is to be
determined.

Jackie Etsten asked how practical it would be to add lanes for emergency evacuation. She said the volume of traffic that
would leave the Cape would be huge and result in traffic backing up on roads and the cost of doing this is huge. She said
cities affected by hurricanes along the gulf coast have made it clear that people should shelter in place because it’s a lot less
dangerous than getting caught on the highway from traffic backing up. She said she hopes that this issue is looked at
carefully when approving extra capacity. Mr. Britland said it would not be providing extra capacity for evacuation. He said
the idea being if they provide lanes that are up to standards as well as full shoulders it allows more mobility but also in the
event of an emergency when getting over the bridge vehicles could use the shoulders to move over for emergency vehicles to
get through. He said it’s meant to provide the proper capacity up to standards. He said it would not be a specific lane for
emergency access.

Jeff McEwen, Federal Highway Administration, said they would look at resiliency, they would look at the possibility of
contraflow over the bridges and what would have to be done in advance on the bridges to allow that to happen for emergency
services to utilize that. He said typically a median crossover would be blocked off; he said those are the types of things they
would look at.

Joy Brookshire referred to the number of lanes in each direction and said under Case 3 and 3A it still mentions two travel
lanes one in each direction and questioned whether it should be two travel lanes in each direction. Mr. Britland said if that is
not clear they will provide clarity on that.

Rob Wilson asked when does MassDOT estimate when they need to start doing this. Mr. Britland said to be determined. He
said the ACOE needs to finish their study and once they do MassDOT can figure out project timelines. He said right now
they are still collaborating on their studies and they also need to initiate conversations about environmental permitting and

Joint CCC and MPO Meeting February 21, 2019 Page 4



project development, but they haven’t set a date for anything like that. He said they are committed to prioritizing the project
well before any projects.

Steve Buckley, OpenChatham, asked at what point whether it’s MassDOT or the ACOE is somebody going to estimate what
the increase in traffic would be with the idea being that if the number of lanes are increased by 50 percent that somebody
should be estimating what that would be and whether other agencies can weigh in on whether that is accurate and desirable.
Mr. Britland said the final report will have that information projected out for future conditions, as well as a year-round
projections and visitation projections and said they worked with the Cape Cod Commission on that. He said that information
will all be in the report and the report will be out for public comment for everyone to have the opportunity to sound off on
those projections.

B NEW BUSINESS: Topics not reasonably anticipated by the Chair more than 48 hours before the meeting.
No new business was taken up.

A motion was made to adjourn at 4:20 p.m. The motion was seconded and voted unanimously.

R ecnartfilllys cuilmitted

List of Documents Used/Presented at the February 21, 2019 Joint Meeting

» February 21, 2019 Agenda for the Joint Meeting of the Cape Cod Commission and Metropolitan Planning Organization.

» Draft Cape Cod Commission meeting minutes of the January 10, 2019 and January 24, 2019.

» PowerPoint slide presentation on the 2020 Cape Cod Regional Transportation Plan by Steven Tupper, Commission staff.

» PowerPoint slide presentation on the Major Rehabilitation Evaluation Study/Cape Cod Canal Bridges by Craig Martin,
Project Manager, Army Corps of Engineers.

 PowerPoint slide presentation on the Cape Cod Canal Transportation Study by Ethan Britland, Project Manager, Cape Cod
Canal Area Transportation Study, Massachusetts Department of Transportation.

Joint CCC and MPO Meeting February 21, 2019 Page 5





























































































